
 

 

 

4 March 2024 

At the conclusion of the Cultural and Creative Committee 

 

Transport, Heritage and Planning 
Committee 

 



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 4 March 2024 

  

Agenda 
  
 

 

1.   Confirmation of Minutes 

2.   Statement of Ethical Obligations and Disclosures of Interest 

3.   Fire Safety Reports 

 



 

 

 
 

Disclaimer, Terms and Guidelines for 
Speakers at Council Committees 
As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to speak directly to Councillors during 
Committee meetings about items on the agenda. 

Webcast  

In accordance with the City of Sydney Code of Meeting Practice, Committee meetings are recorded and webcast 
live on the City of Sydney website at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.  

Members of the public attending a council or committee meeting may have their image, voice and personal 
information (including name and address) recorded, publicly broadcast and archived for up to 12 months.  

Consent  

By attending a council or committee meeting, members of the public consent to this use of their image, voice and 
personal information.  

Disclaimer 

Statements made by individuals at a council or committee meeting, and which may be contained in a live stream 
or recording of the meeting are those of the individuals making them, and not of the City. To be clear, unless set 
out in a resolution of council, the City does not endorse or support such statements. 

The City does not accept any liability for statements made or actions taken by individuals during a Council or 
Committee meeting that may be contrary to law, including discriminatory, defamatory or offensive comments. Such 
statements or actions are not protected by privilege and may be the subject of legal proceedings and potential 
liability, for which the City takes no responsibility. 

Guidelines  

To enable the Committee to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time available, we 
encourage people interested in speaking at Committee to: 

1. Register to speak by calling Secretariat on 9265 9702 or emailing secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au 
before 10.00am on the day of the meeting. 

2. Check the recommendation in the Committee report before speaking, as it may address your concerns so 
that you just need to indicate your support for the recommendation. 

3. Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker (with a warning bell at two minutes) and 
prepare your presentation to cover your major points within that time. 

4. Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and information that the 
Committee may not already know. 

5. If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to nominate three 
representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how many people they are representing. 

Committee meetings can continue until very late, particularly when there is a long agenda and a large number of 
speakers. This impacts on speakers who have to wait until very late, as well as City staff and Councillors who are 
required to remain focused and alert until very late. At the start of each Committee meeting, the Committee Chair 
may reorder agenda items so that those items with speakers can be dealt with first. 

Committee reports are available at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au 

http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/
mailto:secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/


Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 4 March 2024 
 

Confirmation of Minutes 

Minutes of the following meetings of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee are 
submitted for confirmation: 

Meeting of 12 February 2024 

1

Item 1.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 4 March 2024 
 

 

Statement of Ethical Obligations 

In accordance with section 233A of the Local Government Act 1993, the Lord Mayor and 

Councillors are bound by the Oath or Affirmation of Office made at the start of the Council 

term to undertake their civic duties in the best interests of the people of the City of Sydney 

and the City of Sydney Council and to faithfully and impartially carry out the functions, 

powers, authorities and discretions vested in them under the Local Government Act 1993 or 

any other Act, to the best of their ability and judgement. 

Disclosures of Interest 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Act 1993, the City of Sydney Code of 
Meeting Practice and the City of Sydney Code of Conduct, Councillors are required to 
disclose and manage both pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in any matter on the 
agenda for this meeting. 

In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed. 

This includes receipt of reportable political donations over the previous four years. 

1

Item 2.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 4 March 2024 
 

 

Fire Safety Reports 

File No: S105001.002 

Summary 

The City of Sydney regularly receives building reports from Fire and Rescue NSW in relation 
to inspections carried out by Fire and Rescue NSW Authorised Officers. These inspection 
reports are to be reported to Council and Council is required to determine whether to 
exercise its power to issue fire safety orders under Division 9.3 and Schedule 5 of the 
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the Act).  

In response to Fire and Rescue NSW reports City staff undertake inspections to ensure fire 
safety measures are in full operation and that building exits are clear and unimpeded. Fire 
and Rescue NSW inspections revealed fire safety concerns that require Council as the 
appropriate regulatory authority to use its discretion and address the concerns observed at 
the time of the inspection. 

Fire and Rescue NSW has powers under the Act to carry out inspections of buildings and it 
is required to forward its findings to the City. 

Fire and Rescue NSW reports received by the City are required to be tabled before Council.  
Attached are details of five reports received by the City from Fire and Rescue NSW. The 
attachments deal with five properties and includes the Fire and Rescue NSW report and the 
findings (preliminary or final) by the City’s Officer, along with other documentation relevant to 
that property. 

  

1

Item 3.



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 4 March 2024 
 

 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that Council note: 

(A) the contents of the Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet, as shown at Attachment A to 
the subject report; 

(B) the inspection reports by Fire and Rescue NSW, as shown at Attachments B to F to 
the subject report; 

(C) the contents of Attachment B and exercise its power under the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to issue a Fire Safety Order at 10-24 Flinders 
Street, Darlinghurst; 

(D) the contents of Attachment C and not exercise its power under the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to issue a Fire Safety Order at 6/4 Huntley Street, 
Alexandria at this time; 

(E) the contents of Attachment D and not exercise its power under the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to issue a Fire Safety Order at 316 Elizabeth 
Street, Surry Hills at this time; 

(F) the contents of Attachment E and not exercise its power under the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to issue a Fire Safety Order at 208-218 Riley 
Street, Surry Hills at this time; 

(G) the contents of Attachment F and not exercise its power under the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to issue a Fire Safety Order at 20-28 Maddox 
Street, Alexandria at this time. 

 

Attachments 

Attachment A. Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet 

Attachment B. Inspection Report - 10-24 Flinders Street, Darlinghurst 

Attachment C. Inspection Report - 6/4 Huntley Street, Alexandria 

Attachment D. Inspection Report - 316 Elizabeth Street, Surry Hills 

Attachment E. Inspection Report - 208-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills 

Attachment F. Inspection Report - 20-28 Maddox Street, Alexandria 

  

2



Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 4 March 2024 
 

 

Background 

1. The City receives inspection reports and recommendations from Fire and Rescue 
NSW in relation to inspections carried out on buildings located within the City's local 
government area. 

2. Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, (the Act), Fire and 
Rescue NSW has the power to carry out inspections of buildings to determine if the 
building has adequate provision for fire safety and/or is compliant with legislation. 

3. On average, the City receives approximately 50 such reports each year. They can be 
prompted by reports from the Police or others who have a concern relating to fire 
safety in a building.  

4. The inspection is undertaken to ensure fire safety measures are in full operation and 
that building exits are clear and unimpeded. 

5. When Fire and Rescue NSW carries out such an inspection, a report and any 
recommendations must be provided to the City. 

6. Under the Act, Council is then required to table the report and make a determination 
as to whether it will exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order 1 or 2 in Schedule 
5, Part 2 of the Act.  

(a) Fire Safety Order 1 requires a person to do or stop doing certain specified things 
to improve fire safety;  

(b) Fire Safety Order 2 requires a person to cease conducting an activity on 
premises where that activity constitutes, or is likely to constitute, a life-
threatening hazard or a threat to public health or public safety. 

7. Attached are the details of the reports received from Fire and Rescue NSW, including 
recommendations for further action. The properties have also been reviewed by a City 
Officer. 

8.  Personal information has been redacted from the reports in accordance with the 
Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998. 

Relevant Legislation 

9. Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979. 

GRAHAM JAHN AM 

Director City Planning, Development and Transport 

Andrew Thomas, Executive Manager Planning and Development 

3



Attachment A 

Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet 

4



 

Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet 
Cl.17, Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, reports to Council, S105001.002  

 

Total number of properties tabled: 5 
 

 
Report – March 2024    

Summary table 
 

Att.  
(A-F) 

Premises Specifics Actions/ Recommendation 

A Not applicable – Summary Sheet Summary of clause 17, Schedule 5 matters tabled at Council meeting. 

B  

10-24 Flinders Street, Darlinghurst 

Premises inspected; owners have been issued with a Notice of Intention to give a Fire Safety Order; follow 
up compliance site inspections are to be undertaken to ensure fire safety works are satisfactorily completed. 

C 

6/4 Huntley Street, Alexandria 

Premises inspected; owners have been issued with corrective action correspondence; follow up compliance 
site inspections are to be undertaken to ensure fire safety works are satisfactorily completed. 

D 

316 Elizabeth Street, Surry Hills 

Premises inspected; matters raised have been rectified, no further action required. 

E 

208-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills 

Premises inspected; matters raised have been rectified, no further action required. 

F 

20-28 Maddox Street, Alexandria 

Premises inspected; owners have been issued with corrective action correspondence; follow up compliance 
site inspections are to be undertaken to ensure fire safety works are satisfactorily completed. 

 

5



Attachment B 

Inspection Report  

10-24 Flinders Street, Darlinghurst 

6



 

 
  

7



 

Council Investigation Officer Inspection and Recommendation Report 
Clause 17(2) of Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 

(the Act) 
 

 
File: CSM 3097635                     Officer: Ashley Host  Date: 30 January 2024 
 
Premises: 10-24 Flinders Street, Darlinghurst (aka 2 Sturt Street, ‘Arq Nightclub’)  
 

 
Executive Summary:  
 

Council received correspondence dated 1 December 2023 from the Commissioner of Fire and 
Rescue NSW (FRNSW) in relation to the subject premises with respect to matters of fire safety. 

The site is occupied by a two-storey building containing a nightclub known as Arq Sydney, 
boarding house accommodation with twenty-two (22) rooms, and one ground floor retail tenancy. 
The site fronts Flinders Street and has rear lane access to Sturt Street.  
 
An inspection of the whole premises was undertaken with the nightclub manager which revealed 
the premises are deficient in fire safety and egress provisions in the following areas:  
 
(i) A lack of adequate facilities for firefighting.  
 
(ii) Safe and dignified emergency egress for occupants to safety evacuate the building in the event 
of a fire 
 
Council investigations have revealed the premises are deficient in the provisions for fire safety and 
that a Notice of Intention to issue a fire safety order is is required under Schedule 5 of the 
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 so as to ensure and promote adequate 
facilities for fire safety/fire safety awareness. 
 
Observation of the external features of the building did not identify the existence of any potential 
combustible composite cladding on the façade of the building. 
 

Chronology:  
 

Date Event 

01.12.2023 FRNSW correspondence received regarding premises 10-24 Flinders Street, Darlinghurst  

22.12.2023 An inspection in the presence of the building’s nightclub and boarding house manager 
revealed the following fire safety issues: 

1. The fire hydrant system appears to be an older system and is not correctly installed 
to meet the operational needs of FRNSW.  

2. The fire hydrant system appears to not have been being routinely serviced.   
3. A number of emergency exit light fixtures were not operational. 
4. A number of exit signs were not operational. 
5. Items were observed to be installed within the path of travel to the exit in Flinders 

Street, partially reducing its width. 

 
14. 02.2024 Notice of Intention to issue a fire safety order issued. 

 
  

8



 

FIRE AND RESCUE NSW REPORT: 
 
References: [BFS23/6028 (31545), BFS23/121236; Trim Ref: 2023/690615] 
 
Fire and Rescue NSW (FRNSW) received correspondence on 14 September 2023 concerning the 
adequacy of the provision for fire safety in connection with the premises following their response to 
an automatic fire alarm at the premises. 
 
Issues  
 
The report from FRNSW detailed numerous issues, in particular noting: 
 

Ref Issue City response 

1A. Automatic smoke detection  

A A performance was occurring on stage at 
the time of inspection with an angle 
grinder, which produced a significant 
amount of smoke, yet the smoke detection 
system did not activate despite not 
showing any faults or disablements. 

To be addressed by Fire Safety Order to 
require certification that the system 
complies with and operates in accordance 
with the requirements of AS1670.1 

B The monthly logbook for the smoke 
detection system included a note that the 
‘EWIS batteries were out of date’ and it is 
unclear if this issue has been resolved. 

At the time of inspection, the monthly 
logbook recorded that the EWIS batteries 
had been replaced. 

1B Fire hydrant system 

A(i) The fire hydrant booster assembly is 
located within the nightclub which does not 
suit the operational needs of FRNSW or 
afford maximum accessibility for and 
protection of fire fighters contrary to Clause 
7.3 of AS2419.1-2005.  

To be addressed by Fire Safety Order to 
require the system to be upgraded to 
comply with the current Standard AS 
2419.1-2021 

A(ii) Feed fire hydrants have not been installed 
onsite adjacent to the booster inlet 
connections contrary to Clause 7.4 of 
AS2419.1-2005. 

To be addressed by Fire Safety Order to 
require the system to be upgraded to 
comply with the current Standard AS 
2419.1-2021 

A(iii) The doors to the booster enclosure were 
not marked with the words ‘FIRE 
HYDRANT BOOSTER’ in letters not less 
than 50mm high contrary to Clause 7.9 of 
AS2419.1-2005.  
 

To be addressed by Fire Safety Order to 
require the system to be upgraded to 
comply with the current Standard AS 
2419.1-2021 
 
 

A(iv) A permanent and fade resistant or 
engraved sign indicating the boost 
pressure and test pressure was not 
provided at the booster assembly contrary 
to Clause 7.10.1 of As2419.1-2005. 

To be addressed by Fire Safety Order to 
require the system to be upgraded to 
comply with the current Standard AS 
2419.1-2021 

A(v) A permanent water and fade resistant 
block plan was not provided to the booster 
assembly contrary to Clause 7.11 of 
AS2419.1-2005. 

To be addressed by Fire Safety Order to 
require the system to be upgraded to 
comply with the current Standard AS 
2419.1-2021 

A(vi) The boost/inlet connections associated 
with the booster assembly contained 
service labels/tags indicating the valves 
had not received any routine servicing 
since October 2019 contrary to Clause 4.3 
of As1851 and Clause 81 of the EPA 
Regulation 2021.  

The service labels/tags to the hydrant 
system were up to date at the time of 
inspection, indicating that it had received 
recent routine testing. 

9



 

B. Coverage  

i Hydrant coverage from the installed 
system could not be determined due to the 
lack of a block plan and the limited number 
of internal hydrants found at the time of 
inspection. 
 

To be addressed by Fire Safety Order to 
require the system to be upgraded to 
comply with the current Standard AS 
2419.1-2021 
  

C. Hydrant system standard of performance  

i FRNSW are of the opinion the standard of 
performance recorded on the AFSS for the 
hydrant is incorrect (AS2419.1-2005) and 
that the system displays the characteristics 
of an Ord 70 system.  

To be addressed by Fire Safety Order to 
require the system to be upgraded to 
comply with the current Standard AS 
2419.1-2021 
 

Emergency lighting  

1C Multiple emergency lighting fixtures were 
not operating and had not been maintained 
or observed to be covered with ‘Gaffa’ tape 
contrary to Clause 81 of the EPA 
Regulation 2021 and Clause E4D2 of the 
NCC. 

To be addressed by Fire Safety Order to 
require the emergency lighting system to 
be rectified to comply with the installed 
Standard.  

Fire doors  

1D The fire door to the plantroom was ‘choked’ 
in the open position to ventilate the room 
contrary to specification 12 of the NCC and 
AS1905.1. 

At the time of inspection there were no 
doors observed to be propped open.  

2. Access and egress  

2A There were multiple items stored within the 
fire exit (southeast corner of the building) 
contrary to Section 109 of EPA Regulation 
2021. 

At the time of inspection there were no 
items observed to have been installed in 
the fire exit located in the southeast 
corner of the building. 

2B A skip bin was located directly outside the 
discharge doors of the fire exits which 
discharges to Sturt Street at the rear of the 
building, which was partially obstruction the 
path of travel from the building.  
 

At the time of inspection no skip bin was 
observed outside the exit doors to Sturt 
Street. Management advised items are 
often discarded at this location however 
the items are placed on the roadway, 
which is not the responsibility of the 
owner and would be the City’s 
responsibility to address. 

2C Garbage bins were being stored along 
external passageway which leads to 
Flinders Street, which were partially 
obstructing the path of travel to the road 
after discharging from the buildings fire 
exits. 

At the time of inspection large skip bins 
and beer kegs were observed to be 
stored along the external passageway 
leading to Flinders Street, partially 
reducing the exit width. 
 
To be addressed by Fire Safety Order to 
require the exit pathways to be kept clear 
and the bins to be relocated to a more 
suitable location. 

 
  

10



 

FRNSW Recommendations  
 
FRNSW have made two recommendations within their report. In general, FRNSW have requested 
that Council: 
 

1. Inspect the subject premises and take action to have the identified fire safety issues 
appropriately addressed. 

 
2. Advise them in writing of its determination in relation to this matter in accordance with the 

provisions of clause 17(4) of Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 
Act 1979. 

 

 

COUNCIL INVESTIGATION OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

Issue 
Order 
(NOI) 

Issue 
emergency 
Order 

Issue a 
compliance letter 
of instruction 

Cited 
Matters 
rectified 

Continue to undertake 
compliance action in 
response to issued 
Council correspondence 

Continue with 

compliance actions 

under the current 

Council Order 

 

Other (to 
specify) 

 

 
As a result of a site inspection undertaken by Council investigation officers a notice of intention (NOI) 
for a fire safety order was issued 14 February 2024 under Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning 
and Assessment Act, 1979 to address the fire safety deficiencies identified by FRNSW and the 
Council investigation officer.  
 
The issue of a fire safety order will ensure that suitable fire safety systems are in position throughout 
the building to provide improved and adequate provisions for fire safety. 

 
That the Commissioner of FRNSW be advised of Council’s actions and determination. 

Referenced/Attached Documents: 

2023/690615 FRNSW S9.32 report dated 1 December 2023 

 
Trim Reference:   CSM reference No#: 3097635 

11



 

12



 

13



 

14



 

15



 

 

16



Attachment C 

Inspection Report   

6/4 Huntley Street, Alexandria 

17



 

 
  

18



 

Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report 
Clause 17(2), Part 8 of Schedule 5, of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 

Act 1979 (the Act) 
 

File: CSM 3105917                         Officer: Andrew Porter   Date: 29/01/2024 
 
Premises: 6/4 Huntley Street Alexandria  

 

Executive Summary:   
Council received correspondence from the Commissioner of Fire and Rescue NSW (FRNSW) in 
relation to the subject premises on 15 December 2023 with respect to matters of fire safety. 

The site at 4 Huntley Street Alexandria consists of a mixed-use retail, warehouse and ancillary office 
use one and two storey building comprising 9 attached warehouse units.   

Inspections of the buildings undertaken by a Council investigation officer revealed that the 
premises have some minor fire safety maintenance matters to be attended to.  
 
The building is otherwise equipped with numerous fire safety systems (both active and passive) 
that provide adequate provision for fire safety.  
  
Council investigations have revealed that whilst there are several minor fire safety “maintenance 
and management” works to attend to, the overall fire safety systems provided within the subject 
buildings are considered adequate in the circumstances.  
  
It is considered the above fire safety works are of a degree which can be addressed by routine 
preventative and corrective maintenance actions undertaken by the owner’s fire service 
contractor(s) through written instruction from Council. 
 
Observation of the external features of the building did not identify the existence of any potential 
combustible composite cladding on the façade of the building. 
 

Date Event 

15/12/2023 FRNSW correspondence received regarding premises Brinks Australia Unit 6 / 4 
Huntley Street Alexandria. 

24/01/2024 Contact was made with the building manager and access arranged for an 
inspection on Tuesday 30 January 2024.  

30/01/2024 Council investigation officer carried out an inspection of the building and sites fire 
safety and egress provisions and noted the following fire safety issues during the 
inspection of the building and site. 

- The hydrant booster identification signage has faded and requires 
replacement. 

- There was no fire hydrant system block plan located onsite. 
- There was no signage at the fire hydrant booster assembly indicating the 

test and boost pressures. 
- The onsite attack fire hydrant is located to the rear of a parking space and 

has the potential to be blocked by parked vehicles. 

1/02/2024 Prepared and sent a corrective action letter, requiring the building owners to 
address all relevant maintenance/non-compliant issues to ensure that fire safety 
measures are being maintained to the required standard of performance. 

 
  

19



 

FIRE AND RESCUE NSW REPORT: 
 
References: File Ref. No: BFS23/6284 (31696) TRIM D23/128574 
Fire and Rescue NSW conducted an inspection of the subject buildings on 16 November 2023 in 
response to correspondence received on 30 October 2023 that stated ‘the fire exit at the rear of the 
building is bolted shut’. 
 
Issues The report from FRNSW detailed several issues:  
 

Ref. Issue City response 

Essential Fire Safety Measures: 

1A Fire Hydrant System 

A. The fire hydrant booster was identified by signage that 
was significantly faded and not clearly visible, contrary to 
the requirements of Clause 11.3.1 of AS2419.1-2021. 

Inspection 30 January 2024 
revealed that although the 
fire hydrant installation was 
installed to an earlier 
standard (AS2419.1-1988) 
the identification signage is 
faded and not clearly 
visible. Written letter of 
instruction given to the 
owners to rectify this non-
compliance. 

B. The block plan provided at the fire hydrant booster was 
damaged such that it did not depict all required 
information and was not displayed in a prominent 
location, contrary to the requirements of Clause 11.5 of 
AS2419.1-2021. 
 

Inspection 30 January 2024 
revealed there was no 
hydrant system block plan 
located onsite at the time of 
inspection. Written letter of 
instruction given to the 
owners to rectify this non-
compliance. 

C. The on-site fire hydrant system does not provide 
coverage to the rearmost parts of the building, contrary to 
the requirements of Clauses 3.5.3.3 and 3.5.3.4 of 
AS2419.1-2021. 

Inspection 30 January 2024 
and subsequent desktop 
audit revealed that the site 
in question from the road 
frontage to the rear is 
approximately 130m in 
distance.  
 
Upon surveying the current 
onsite fire hydrant system to 
the required standard of 
installation (AS2419.1-
1988) all parts of the 
building can be reached 
within 90m of hose from the 
onsite attack hydrant. This 
is compliant with the 
standard of installation and 
Fire and Rescue NSW – 
Fire safety guideline – 
Technical information – Fire 
hydrant concessions for 
existing buildings which was 
developed to assist consent 
authorities on concessions 
acceptable to Fire and 

20



 

Ref. Issue City response 

Rescue NSW regarding the 
provision of fire hydrant 
coverage to an existing 
building or premises that is 
subject to a fire safety 
order. 

D. Signage indicating the required boost pressure was not 
located at the fire hydrant booster, contrary to the 
requirements of Clause 11.3.4.2 of AS2419.1-2021. 

Inspection 30 January 2024 
noted no test and boost 
pressure signage installed 
as required by Clause 5.2.6 
of AS 2419.1-1988 
(Standard of installation). 
Written letter of instruction 
given to the owners to 
rectify this non-compliance. 

E. Signage indicating the test pressure was not located at 
the fire hydrant booster, contrary to the requirements of 
Clause 11.3.4.1 of AS2419.1-2021. 

Inspection on 30 January 
2024 noted no test and 
boost pressure signage 
installed onsite as required 
by Clause 5.2.6 of AS 
2419.1-1988 (Standard of 
installation). Written letter of 
instruction given to the 
owners to rectify this non-
compliance. 

F. The on-site attack hydrant was located in a position 
where it was able to be obstructed by vehicles parked in 
the marked parking spaces, contrary to the requirements 
of Clause 3.5.3.1 of AS2419.1-2021. 

At the inspection on 30 
January 2024, it was 
observed that the onsite 
attack fire hydrant is located 
to the rear of a parking 
space and has the potential 
to be blocked by parked 
vehicles. 
Written letter of instruction 
given to the owners to 
rectify this non-compliance. 

 
FRNSW is therefore of the opinion that there are inadequate provisions for fire safety within the 
building. 
 
FRNSW Recommendations  
 
FRNSW have made recommendations within their report. In general FRNSW have requested that 
Council  
 

1. Review item 1 of FRNSW report and conduct an inspect.  
2. Address any other deficiencies identified on “the premises”. 
3. Advise them in writing of its determination in relation to this matter in accordance with the 

provisions of clause 17(4) of Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 
Act 1979. 

  

21



 

COUNCIL INVESTIGATION OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Issue 
Order 
(NOI) 

Issue 
emergency 
Order 

Issue a 
compliance 
letter of 
instruction 

Cited 
Matters 
rectified 

Continue to undertake 
compliance action in 
response to issued 
Council correspondence 

Continue with 

compliance 

actions under 

the current 

Council 

Order 

 

Other  
(to 
specify) 

 
As a result of site inspections undertaken by a Council investigation officer the owners of the building 
were issued with written instructions to rectify the identified fire safety deficiencies noted by FRNSW 
and the Council investigation officer.  
 
The written instructions direct the owners of the premises to carry out remedial actions to the existing 
fire systems to cause compliance with the required standards of performance. 
 
Follow-up compliance inspections will be undertaken by the Council investigation officer to ensure 
the identified fire safety matters are suitably addressed and compliance with the terms of Councils 
correspondence and the recommendations of FRNSW are satisfied. 
 
It is recommended that Council not exercise its powers to give a fire safety order at this time. 

That the Commissioner of FRNSW be advised of Council’s actions and determination. 

Referenced/Attached Documents: 

  FRNSW S9.32 report dated 15 December 2023 

  Copy of written instructions to the building owners dated 1 February 2024 

 
CSM reference No#: 3105917 
 

22



 

23



 

24



 

 

25



Attachment D 

Inspection Report  

316 Elizabeth Street, Surry Hills 

26



 

 
 

 

 

  

27



 

Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report 
Clause 17(2), Part 8 of Schedule 5, of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 

Act 1979 (the Act) 
 

File: CSM 3112666                         Officer: Joe Kalgovas        Date: 5/01/2024 
 
Premises: 316 Elizabeth Street Surry Hills 

 

Executive Summary: 
 
Council received correspondence from the Commissioner of Fire and Rescue NSW (FRNSW) in 
relation to the subject premises on 2/01/2024 with respect to matters of fire safety. 

The premises consists of a three-storey building approved for offices above a ground floor 
restaurant.   

An inspection of the premises undertaken by a Council investigation officer in the presence of the 
Owners representative revealed that there were no significant fire safety issues occurring within 
the building. 
 
The premises are equipped with numerous fire safety systems (both active and passive) that would 
provide adequate provision for fire safety for occupants in the event of a fire. The annual fire safety 
certification is current and compliant and is on display within the building in accordance with the 
requirements of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000. 
 
Council investigations reveal the overall fire safety systems provided within the subject premises 
are considered adequate in the circumstances.  
 
Observation of the external features of the building did not identify the existence of any potential 
combustible composite cladding on the façade of the building. 

 

Chronology:  
 

Date Event 

02/01/2024 FRNSW correspondence received regarding premises at 316 Elizabeth Street 
Surry Hills. 

10/01/2024 An inspection of the subject premises was undertaken by a Council officer in the 
presence of the Owners representative which found occupants living in the building 
on L2.  Fire safety concerns identified by FRNSW were found to have been 
addressed. 

10/01/2024 A CSM 3114238 has been raised to investigate the unauthorised use of the 
premises for residential purposes without a relevant consent where one is required. 
 
A site inspection was carried out on the 10 January with the owner’s representative 
in attendance when it was confirmed that the first floor room on the western side of 
the building was being occupied for short term accommodation. Officers confirmed  
that there was no approval for residential use.  

19/01/2024 On the 19 January a follow up inspection was conducted which confirmed the 
residential use had ceased with no residential occupiers in attendance. 

 
 
  

28



 

FIRE AND RESCUE NSW REPORT: 
 
References: BFS23/5602 (31113), D23/149674, SCC ref 2024/002109.] 
Fire and Rescue NSW conducted an inspection of the subject premises after receiving an enquiry 
about the smoke detection and alarm system not working. 
 
Issues  
The report from FRNSW detailed a number of issues, as set out below:  
 

Ref Issue City response 

1. Documentation and Certification 
 

 

1A. An Annual Fire Safety Statement (AFSS) was not 
displayed in a prominent location at the premises in 
accordance with Section 89 of the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment (Development Certification 
and Fire Safety) regulation 2021 (EPAR21). 
 

Council records show that the 
e licence is current expiring on 
27/04/2024. 
 
Inspection found the AFSS 
displayed above the FIP.     
 

2. Essential Fire Safety Measures 
 

 

2A. Smoke Detection and Alarm System (SDAS) 
 

 

A. FRNSW are of the opinion that maintenance to the Fire 
Detection and Control Indicating Equipment (FDCIE) is 
not being carried out in accordance with Section 81 of 
EPAR21.  FRNSW observed the following which may 
affect the operation of the SDAS: 

i. System Fault 
ii. Fault 
iii. The FIP screen displayed ***WATCHDOG 

HARDWARE ERROR***CONTACT 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT. 
 

FRNSW received correspondence and photographic 
evidence on 14 October 2023 that the FIP had been 
returned to normal and was showing SYSTEM 
NORMAL. 
 

Inspection found the system to 
be fully operational. 

2B. FRNSW are of the opinion that the building has a rise 
in stories of three (3).  Level 2 and 3 appear to be used 
for short term accommodation.  FRNSW do not have 
any records indicating a link between the premises and 
fire brigade dispatch centre is installed in accordance 
with specification 20C9 of the National Construction 
Code 2022 Volume One, Building Code of Australia 
(NCC). 
 

Council records show that a 
Fire Safety Order (FSO) on 
the building was completed 1 
June 2016 with the building in 
use as shops and offices. 
 
Investigations confirmed that 
part of the property was being 
illegally occupied by Air BnB 
guests which have since 
ceased. A verbal warning was 
issued to the Owners 
Representative to advise that 
the property must not be used 
for any residential use until a 
valid development consent 
has been sought and 
obtained.  

29



 

Ref Issue City response 

 
Term 3.02 of the FSO 
specified signage to clarify 
that the system was not 
connected to FRNSW. 
 

2C. Signage is not installed at the FDCIE indicating the fire 
alarm is not connected to a fire brigade dispatch 
centre. 
 

Inspection found the required 
signage displayed. 

 
FRNSW is therefore of the opinion that there are inadequate provisions for fire safety within the 
building. 
 
FRNSW Recommendations  
 
FRNSW have made a number of recommendations within their report. In general, FRNSW have 
requested that Council: 
 

1. Inspect the subject premises and take action to have the identified fire safety issues 
appropriately addressed. 
 

2. FRNSW has listed the issues that were identified by their inspection pursuant to s.9.32 and 
clause 17 of Schedule 5 of the (previously 119T (4) and s.121ZD (1) Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Act 1979. 

 
3. FRNSW have also requested that as soon as practical after the above report has been 

tabled and considered, that notice of any determination in relation to the report and 
recommendations is forwarded to them in accordance with clause 17(4) of Schedule 5 of 
the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979. 

 

 
 

COUNCIL INVESTIGATION OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

Issue 
Order 
(NOI) 

Issue 
emergency 
Order 

Issue a 
compliance 
letter of 
instruction 

Cited 
Matters 
rectified 

Continue to undertake 
compliance action in 
response to issued 
Council 
correspondence 

Continue with 

compliance 

actions under the 

current Council 

Order 

 

Other  
(to 
specify) 

 

As a result of the above site inspection undertaken by Council’s investigation officers it is 
recommended that no further action be taken at this time as identified deficiencies have been 
rectified. 
 
It is recommended that Council not exercise its powers to give a fire safety order at this time, and 

that the Commissioner of FRNSW be advised of Council’s actions and determination. 

 

Trim Reference: 2024/007713   CSM reference No#: 3112666 

 

30



 

31



 

32



 

 

33



Attachment E 

Inspection Report  

208-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills 

34



 

 
 

 

  

35



 

Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report 
Clause 17(2), Part 8 of Schedule 5, of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 

Act 1979 (the Act) 
 

File: CSM3117897                                  Officer: Joe Kalgovas       Date: 23/01/2024 
 
Premises: 208-218 Riley Street, SURRY HILLS 

 

Executive Summary:  
 
Council received correspondence from the Commissioner of Fire and Rescue NSW (FRNSW) in 
relation to the subject premises on with respect to matters of fire safety. 

The premises consists of a new 11 storey level building with the approved uses being a hotel with 
carparking.  

An inspection of the premises undertaken by a Council investigation officer in the presence of the 
Manager revealed that there were no significant fire safety issues occurring within the building. 
 
The premises are equipped with numerous fire safety systems (both active and passive) that would 
provide adequate provision for fire safety for occupants in the event of a fire. The annual fire safety 
certification is current and compliant and is on display within the building in accordance with the 
requirements of the Environmental Planning and Assessment (Development Certification and Fire 
Safety) Regulation 2021). 
 
Council investigations revealed that whilst there remains a minor operational fire curtain raising 
procedure to attend to, the overall fire safety systems provided within the subject premises are 
considered adequate in the circumstances.  
 
The above fire safety measure is currently being reviewed in relation to its suitability by FRNSW. 
Further discussion with the building manager on the 14 February 2024 has indicated that FRNSW 
may now have no concerns with the fire curtain and he is awaiting their final sign off. In the event 
that issues are still raised then this would be referred to the current Certifier to address who is yet 
to issue the final OC for the building. 
 
Observation of the external features of the building did not identify the existence of any potential 
combustible composite cladding on the façade of the building. 
 

 

Chronology:  
 

Date Event 

11/01/2024 FRNSW correspondence received regarding premises 212 Riley Street Surry Hills. 
 

22/01/2024 An inspection of the subject premises was undertaken by a Council officer with the 
building manager which found smoke/fire curtains installed to operate across the 
lift doors and an isolating button marked on the Fire Indicator Panel. 
 

23/01/2024 The matter is currently being reviewed by FRNSW to assess their concerns about 
firefighting.  No further action is proposed. No fire safety defects found at the 
inspection that would warrant Council intervention. 
 

 
  

36

https://legislation.nsw.gov.au/view/html/inforce/current/sl-2021-0689
https://legislation.nsw.gov.au/view/html/inforce/current/sl-2021-0689


 

 
FIRE AND RESCUE NSW REPORT: 

 
 
References: BFS23/7277 (32571), D23/139799, 2024/017272.] 
 
Fire and Rescue NSW carried out an inspection of the subject building with regard to fire-fighting 
concerns. 
 
Issues:  
 
FRNSW concerns relate to the operation of drop-down smoke/fire curtains installed in front of the 
lift doors which prevent firefighters from being able to use the emergency lift. 
 
The report from FRNSW detailed a number of general comments and concerns as set out below: 
 

Ref Issue City response 

1. Investigation Details 
The following items are provided to the Council as part 
of the investigation on Thursday 14 December 2023. 
 

- 

 1A. The powers of an investigation officer were used to 
inspect the concern relating to the safety of occupants 
in the event of a fire and prevent the spread of fire to 
determine whether there was a breach in any codes, 
policies, or legislation that may be considered an 
offence. 
 

Noted, no response required. 

 1B. The inspection assessed whether or not the 
provisions for fire safety were present at the premises 
and whether or not provision for fire safety were 
present at the premises and whether or not Regulation 
112 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 
(Development Certification and Fire Safety) Regulation 
2021 (EPAR2021) was compliant. 
 

Noted, no response required. 

 1C. A visual inspection was conducted of the areas, 
including photos of essential fire safety measures in 
the areas accessed. Discussions with the General 
Manager were also noted. 
 

Noted, no response required. 

2. Fire Safety Inspection 
The following is provided as part of the investigation: 
 

- 

 2A. Evidence to Conduct an Investigation 
 

- 

    A. Discussions with the General Manager confirmed 
the concern in writing about the smoke/fire curtains 
and firefighter access. 
 

Noted, no response required. 

 2B. Provisions for Fire Safety 
 

- 

    A. The discussion with the General Manager 
confirmed that: 
     i   The certifying authority had permitted the smoke 
/fire curtains and had been through the relevant 
approval process and inspection stages. 

Noted, the fire indicator panel 
is now fully operational. 

37



 

Ref Issue City response 

     ii   He was aware of the concern and referred the 
matter to the fire engineer upon being advised of the 
issue surrounding access to the lift. He also received 
the response as outlined in the concern. 
     iii   Despite the activation of the smoke/fire curtains, 
the hotel’s occupants can exit the building. The staff 
were also trained in the evacuation procedures. 
     iv   He knew the faults and isolations displayed on 
the fire brigade panel resulted from the approved 
building work. He advised that the builders were 
responsible for the construction area where the faults 
and isolations are displayed. 
     v   Despite the faults and isolations, the smoke 
detection and alarm system could notify the hotel’s 
occupants to evacuate. 
     vi   Two separate and independent fire brigade 
panels monitor the hotel and building containing 
permanent residents. 
 

    B. When asked, the General Manager produced a 
copy of the evacuation procedures for the premises 
and could show where an evacuation plan was 
displayed. 
 

Noted, no response required. 

 2C. Regulation 112 of EPAR2021 
 

- 

    A. Because of the building work, observations at the 
time indicated that new essential fire safety measures 
are being upgraded. However, the maintenance tags to 
the installed hydrant and sprinkler booster were last 
tagged in November 2022. 
 

Current e licence is due 28 
February 2024, no issue 
identified. 

 2D. Outcomes 
 

- 

    A. The General Manager could provide sufficient 
evidence that the hotel’s occupants could safely 
evacuate, which was also corroborated by the written 
concern. 
 

Noted, no issue identified. 

    B. The concern relating to the smoke/fire curtains to 
the lift doors did not reveal sufficient evidence of a 
violation of the require standard of proof.  It did not 
provide reasonable grounds for further investigation by 
FRNSW. 
 

Noted, no issue identified. 

    C. Any change to the design and operation of the lifts 
falls outside FRNSW legislative powers.  It would be at 
the Council’s discretion to determine whether a review 
of the development consent is required and whether 
the building works comply with the consent conditions, 
which include the certification and maintenance of the 
installed and new essential fire safety measures 
despite the observed faults and isolations to the fire 
brigade panel while building work is occurring at the 
premises. 
 

No building works are 
currently being undertaken 
with no faults or isolations on 
display. 
 
Development consent does 
not address the specific 
requirements of the building 
code. 
 

38



 

Ref Issue City response 

A Private Certifier was 
appointed with the authority to 
determine operational 
requirements against the 
performance requirement of 
the building code.  
Additionally, the building is fire 
engineered to performance 
requirements. 
 
Occupation Certificate is on 
record dated 24 April 2023. 
 
No action is proposed. 
 

3. Possible Non-Conformities 
The following comments are provided to the Council: 
 

- 

 3A. Should the Council consider reviewing the 
development consent, a review may evaluate whether 
there is safe access for emergency service personnel 
under E3P2 ‘Emergency lifts’ of the NCC. 
 

E3P2 Emergency lifts:  
 
“One or more passengers lifts 
fitted as emergency lifts to 
serve each floor served by the 
lifts in a building must be 
installed to facilitate the 
activities of the fire brigade 
and other emergency 
personnel.” 
 
Operational requirements by 
FRNSW are currently being 
reviewed to determine if any 
changes are warranted. 
 
No action is proposed. 
 

 3B. The review may consider whether the approval of 
emergency lifts and smoke/fire curtains considered the 
activities of FRNSW and other emergency services 
personnel and whether an amendment is required. 
 

Construction compliance has 
been determined by a Private 
Certifier who was appointed 
with authority to determine 
operational requirements 
against the performance 
requirement of the building 
code.   
 
Occupation Certificate is on 
record dated 24 April 2023. 
 
Operational requirements 
have been proposed by the 
Owners and are currently 
being reviewed by FRNSW to 
determine if any amendment 
is warranted. 
No action is proposed. 

 

39



 

FRNSW is therefore of the opinion that there are fire safety concerns within the building. 
 
FRNSW Recommendations:  
 
FRNSW have made no direct recommendation within their report other than legislative notification. 
 

 
 

COUNCIL INVESTIGATION OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

Issue 
Order 
(NOI) 

Issue 
emergency 
Order 

Issue a 
compliance letter 
of instruction 

Cited 
Matters 
rectified 

Continue to undertake 
compliance action in 
response to issued 
Council correspondence 

Continue with 

compliance actions 

under the current 

Council Order 

 

No further 
action 

 
That the Commissioner of FRNSW be advised of Council’s actions and determination. 
 
Referenced/Attached Documents:  
 

 2024/039031 Correspondence between FRNSW and Owners on proposed 
resolution in relation to the fire curtains installed to the lift doors. 
 

 
 
Trim Reference: 2024/020136   CSM reference No#: 3117897 

 
 

40



 

41



 

42



 

43



 

 

44



Attachment F 

Inspection Report   

20-28 Maddox Street, Alexandria 

45



 

 
  

46



 

Council investigation officer Inspection and Recommendation Report 
Clause 17(2), Part 8 of Schedule 5, of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 

Act 1979 (the Act) 
 

File: CSM 3120376                         Officer: Andrew Porter    Date: 29/01/2024 
 
Premises: 20-28 Maddox Street, Alexandria  

 

Executive Summary:   
Council received correspondence from the Commissioner of Fire and Rescue NSW (FRNSW) in 
relation to the subject premises on 11 January 2024 with respect to matters of fire safety. 

The site known as ‘The Spurway Building’ consists of a two and three storey mixed-use building 
comprising of retail and office uses. 

Inspection of the buildings undertaken by a Council investigation officer revealed that the premises 
have some minor fire safety maintenance matters to be attended to.  
 
The building is otherwise equipped with numerous fire safety systems (both active and passive) 
that provide adequate provision for fire safety.  
  
Council investigations have revealed that whilst there are several minor fire safety “maintenance 
and management” works to attend to, the overall fire safety systems provided within the subject 
buildings are considered adequate in the circumstances.  
  
It is considered that the above fire safety works are of a degree which can be addressed by routine 
preventative and corrective maintenance actions undertaken by the owner’s fire service 
contractor(s) through written instruction from Council. 
 
Observation of the external features of the building did not identify the existence of any potential 
combustible composite cladding on the façade of the building. 
 

Date Event 

11/01/2024 FRNSW correspondence received regarding premises ‘The Spurway Building’ 
20-28 Maddox Street Alexandria 
 

30/01/2024 An inspection of the subject premises was undertaken by a Council officer and 
revealed the following fire safety issues within the building at the time of 
inspection. 

- The fire hydrant system isolation valve is not secured open. 
- A block plan of the hydrant system installed on-site. 
- Fire hydrant system test and boost pressure signage not installed onsite. 
- The pressure gauge installed at the hydrant booster assembly is faded 

and illegible. 
- Signage indicating the maximum allowable inlet pressure at the sprinkler 

booster connection was not installed. 
- Plan of risk (block plan) was not provided at the sprinkler control valves. 

31/01/2024 Corrective action letter sent, requiring the building owners to address all 
relevant maintenance/non-compliant issues to ensure that fire safety measures 
are being maintained to the required standard of performance. 

 
 
  

47



 

FIRE AND RESCUE NSW REPORT: 
 
References: File Ref. No: BFS23/5807 (31282) TRIM 2023/647153 
Fire and Rescue NSW conducted an inspection of the subject buildings on 18 October 2023 in 
response to correspondence received on 10 October 2023 concerning the adequacy of the 
provision of fire safety in connection with ‘the premises’. 
 
Issues The report from FRNSW detailed several issues:  
 

Ref. Issue City response 

Essential Fire Safety Measures: 

1 The Automatic Fire Detection and Alarm System: 

1A. The Fire Brigade Panel (FBP) was displaying two (2) 
faults and two (2) disablements. 

Confirmed no faults, 
isolations, or disablements 
on the building Fire Brigade 
Panel during the inspection 
conducted out on 29 
January 2024  

1B. Zone Block Plan at the fire brigade panel does not 
appear to correspond to the indicators (description of 
location) of the fire brigade panel and layout of the 
building, contrary to Clause 3.10 of AS1670.1-2018. In 
this regard, the following is provided for councils 
consideration. 
 

At inspection on 29 January 
2024, review of the block 
plan and onsite 
maintenance records, 
where it is noted that the 
programming of the fire 
brigade panel is not correct 
in terms of locations of the 
detectors within the 
building. 
 
Review of development 
approvals reveals that the 
Automatic fire detection and 
alarm system is to comply 
with the requirements of 
AS1670.1-1995. 
 
Written letter of instruction 
given to the owners to 
rectify this non-compliance. 
 

A. During the inspection, FRNSW advised the Strata 
Secretary of the faults and disablements to the fire 
brigade panel and concerns with the zone block plan. 
The strata secretary confirmed that: 

i. The faults and disablements to the fire 
brigade panel were currently being 
investigated, and 

ii. The concerns regarding the zone block plan 
would be raised with the fire services 
contractor immediately. 

Note Fire and Rescue NSW 
comments and addressed 
issues relating to the 
concerns of the Automatic 
fire detection and alarm 
system block plan within 
Councils written letter of 
instruction to the building 
owners. 

B. As the appropriate regulatory authority, it would be at the 
Council’s discretion to determine whether further 
investigation is required in this instance. 

Noted Fire and Rescue 
NSW comments and 
following up all appropriate 
matters with the building 
owners through Councils 
written letter of instruction. 
 

48



 

Ref. Issue City response 

2. Fire Hydrant System 

2A. The isolation valve at the hydrant booster was not 
secured open by a padlock chain, or a padlocked or 
riveted strap, contrary to the requirements of Clause 
8.7.1 of AS2419.1-2021. 

At inspection on 29 January 
2024 noted the isolation 
valve is not secured open 
on the hydrant system. 
Review of development 
approvals reveals that the 
hydrant system is to comply 
with the requirements of 
Clause 4.4.5 AS2419.1-
1994 (Standard of 
installation).  
 
Written letter of instruction 
given to the owners to 
rectify this non-compliance. 
 
 

2B. A block plan has not been provided at the booster 
assembly, contrary to Clause 11.5 of AS2419.1-2021. 

At inspection on 29 January 
2024 noted no block plan of 
the hydrant system installed 
on-site as required by 
Clause 2.3 AS2419.1-1994 
(Standard of installation). 
 
Written letter of instruction 
given to the owners to 
rectify this non-compliance. 
 

2C. Test and boost pressure signage has not been provided 
at the booster assembly, contrary to the requirements of 
Clause 11.3.4 of AS2419.1-2021. 

At inspection on 29 January 
2024 noted no test and 
boost pressure signage 
installed onsite as required 
by Clause 5.6.7 of 
AS2419.1-1994 (Standard 
of installation). 
 
Written letter of instruction 
given to the owners to 
rectify this non-compliance. 
 

2D. The pressure gauge installed at the booster connection is 
illegible and will not facilitate fire brigade operations. 

At inspection on 29 January 
2024, noted the pressure 
gauge installed at the 
hydrant booster assembly is 
faded and illegible. A 
pressure gauge is required 
to be installed and 
maintained in accordance 
with Clause 5.4.2 
AS2419.1-1994. (Standard 
of installation). 
 
Written letter of instruction 
given to the owners to 
rectify this non-compliance. 

49



 

Ref. Issue City response 

3. Automatic Fire Suppression System (Sprinklers) – The emergency instruction provided 
at the valve set indicates the sprinkler system was designed and installed to AS2118.1-
1999. As such, the following comments are provided concerning AS2118.1-1999: 

3A. A sign marked with the maximum allowable inlet pressure 
at the connection was not provided at the booster 
assembly, contrary to the requirements of Clause 4.4.3 of 
AS2118.1-1999. 

At inspection on 29 January 
2024, noted signage 
indicating the maximum 
allowable inlet pressure at 
the sprinkler booster 
connection was not installed 
as required by Clause 4.4.3 
of AS2118.1-1999 
(Standard of installation). 
 
Written letter of instruction 
given to the owners to 
rectify this non-compliance. 
 

3B. A plan of risk (block plan) for the sprinkler system was 
not provided at the booster assembly, contrary to the 
requirements of Clause 8.3 of AS2118.1-1999. 

At inspection on 29 January 
2024, noted plan of risk 
(block plan) was not 
provided at the sprinkler 
control valves as required 
by Clause 8.3 of AS2118.1-
1999. 
 
Written letter of instruction 
given to the owners to 
rectify this non-compliance. 
 

4 Annual Fire Safety Statement (AFSS) 

4A. A copy of the current AFSS was not prominently 
displayed within the building in accordance with Section 
89 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 
(Development Certification and Fire Safety)  
Regulation 2021. In this regard, the AFSS on display was 
dated September 2022 and is no longer valid. 

At inspection on 29 January 
2024, noted the most recent 
2023 Annual Fire Safety 
Statement was displayed.  
 
 

4B. FRNSW was unable to determine the standard of 
performance for the fire safety measures of the building 
as the displayed AFSS does not specify which 
version/year of the Australian Standard or BCA each fire 
safety measure is required to perform. 

Noted that the current fire 
safety schedule for the 
building does not have the 
version/year of the 
Australian Standard or BCA 
each fire safety measure is 
required to perform. 
 
Fire safety schedule to be 
reissued in accordance with 
section 80A of the 
Environmental Planning and 
Assessment (Development 
Certification and Fire 
Safety) Regulation 2021 to 
include the year 
version/year of the 
Australian Standard or BCA 
each fire safety measure is 
required to perform. 

50



 

FRNSW is therefore of the opinion that there are inadequate provisions for fire safety within the 
building. 
 
FRNSW Recommendations  
 
FRNSW have made recommendations within their report. In general FRNSW have requested that 
Council  
 

1. Inspect the subject premises and take action to have the identified fire safety issues 
appropriately addressed. 

2. Address any other deficiencies identified on “the premises”. 
3. Advise them in writing of its determination in relation to this matter in accordance with the 

provisions of clause 17(4) of Schedule 5 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment 
Act 1979. 

 

COUNCIL INVESTIGATION OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Issue 
Order 
(NOI) 

Issue 
emergency 
Order 

Issue a 
compliance 
letter of 
instruction 

Cited 
Matters 
rectified 

Continue to undertake 
compliance action in 
response to issued 
Council 
correspondence 

Continue with 

compliance 

actions under the 

current Council 

Order 

 

Other  
(to 
specify) 

 
As a result of site inspections undertaken by a Council investigation officer the owners of the building 
were issued with written instructions to rectify the identified fire safety deficiencies noted by FRNSW 
and the Council investigation officer.  
 
The written instructions direct the owners of the premises to carry out remedial actions to the existing 
fire systems to cause compliance with the required standards of performance. 
 
Follow-up compliance inspections will be undertaken by the Council investigation officer to ensure 
the identified fire safety matters are suitably addressed and compliance with the terms of Councils 
correspondence and the recommendations of FRNSW are satisfied. 
 
It is recommended that Council not exercise its powers to give a fire safety order at this time. 

That the Commissioner of FRNSW be advised of Council’s actions and determination. 

Referenced/Attached Documents: 

  FRNSW S9.32 report dated 11 January 2024 

  Copy of written instructions to the building owners dated 31 January 2024 

 
CSM reference No#: 3120376 

51



 

52



 

53



 

54



 

 

55


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes
	2 Statement of Ethical Obligations and Disclosures of Interest
	3 Fire Safety Reports
	Attachment A - Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet
	Attachment B - Inspection Report - 10-24 Flinders Street, Darlinghurst
	Attachment C - Inspection Report - 6/4 Huntley Street, Alexandria
	Attachment D - Inspection Report - 316 Elizabeth Street, Surry Hills
	Attachment E - Inspection Report - 208-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills
	Attachment F - Inspection Report - 20-28 Maddox Street, Alexandria


